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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To The Members of Prime Focus Technologies Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of
Prime Focus Technologies Limited ("the Parent”) and its subsidiaries, (the Parent/
Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), which
comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 315t March 2019, the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated
Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, and based on the consideration of reports of the other auditor on separate financial
statements of the subsidiaries referred to in the Other Matter section below, the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended ('Ind AS’) and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs
of the Group as at 315t March 2019, their consolidated loss, their consolidated total
comprehensive income, their consolidated cash flows and their consolidated changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under section 143 (10) of the Act (SAs). Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the
other auditor in terms of his reports referred to in the Other Matter section below, is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated
financial statements.
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Material uncertainty related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements, which indicates that
the Group has incurred a net loss of Rs. 7,001.86 Lakh during the year ended
31st March, 2019 and, as of that date, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current
assets by Rs. 4,905.28 Lakh. These events or conditions indicate that a material uncertainty
exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
However, the financial statements of the Group have been prepared on a going concern
basis taking into account the support letter from Prime Focus Limited (Holding Company)
and their cash flow projections.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

¢ The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board’s report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

e« Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

e In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information, compare with the financial statements of the
subsidiaries audited by the other auditor, to the extent it relates to these entities and,
in doing so, place reliance on the work of the other auditor and consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. Other information so far as it relates to subsidiaries, is traced
from their financial statements audited by the other auditor.

¢ If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial
performance including other comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and
consolidated changes in equity of the Group in accordance with the Ind AS and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. The respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the
Parent, as aforesaid.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the management either intends to
liquidate or cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Parent has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities or business
activities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the
independent auditors. For the other entities or business activities included in the
consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by the other auditor, such
other auditor remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements
that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the
effect of any identified misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Parent regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter

We did not audit the financial statements of seven subsidiaries, whose financial
statements, before giving effect to the consolidation adjustments, reflect total assets of
Rs. 37,119.88 Lakh as at 315t March, 2019, total revenues of Rs. 9,146.21 Lakh and net
cash inflows amounting to Rs. 1,363.63 Lakh for the year ended on that date, as
considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial statements / financial
information have been audited by other auditor whose reports have been furnished to us
by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far
as it relates to the amounts and disclosures inciuded in respect of these subsidiaries
and our report in terms of subsection (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates
to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on the reports of the other auditor.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements above and our report on Other Legal
and Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matter with
respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditor.

BARODA )

m




Deloitte

Haskins & Sells

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of
the reports of the other auditors on the separate financial statements of subsidiaries
referred to in the Other Matter section above we report, to the extent applicable that:

a)

b)

d)

e)

f)

g)

h)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation
of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it
appears from our examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
including Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with
the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act.

The matter described in the Material uncertainty related to Going Concern section
above, in our opinion, may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the
Group.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the
Parent as on 315t March, 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the
Company and the report of the statutory auditor of its subsidiary company
incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group companies incorporated
in India is disqualified as on 315t March, 2019 from being appointed as a director
in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure A” which is based on the auditors’ reports of the
Parent and subsidiary company incorporated in India. Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of internal
financial controls over financial reporting of those companies.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Parent to its directors during the year
is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i) There were no pending litigations which would impact the consolidated financial
position of the Group.
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ii) The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts
including derivative contracts.

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Parent and its subsidiary
company incorporated in India.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117364W)

_ e

Abhijit A. Damle

Partner
(Membership No. 102912)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 29t May, 2019
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ANNEXURE "A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph (g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the
Company as of and for the year ended 315t March, 2019, we have audited the internal
financial controls over financial reporting of Prime Focus Technologies Limited (hereinafter
referred to as “Parent”) and its subsidiary company which are companies incorporated in
India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Parent and its subsidiary company, which are
companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the respective Companies considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Parent and its subsidiary company, which are companies incorporated in
India, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”)
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing,
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by
the other auditor of the subsidiary company, which is company incorporated in India, in
terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matter paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system
over financial reporting of the Parent and its subsidiary company, which are companies
incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us and based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditor referred to in the
Other Matter paragraph below, the Parent and its subsidiary company, which are
companies incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting were operating effectively as at 315t March, 2019, based on the criteria
for internal financial control over financial reporting established by the respective
companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.
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Other Matter

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial reporting insofar as it relates
to one subsidiary company, which is a company incorporated in India, is based solely on
the corresponding reports of the auditor of such company incorporated in India.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 117364W)

Al

Abhijit A. Damle

Partner
(Membership No. 102912)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 29 May, 2019



Prime Focus Technologies Limited

Consolidated Financial Statements March 31, 2019

Consolidated Balance sheet

(Rs in lakh)

ASSETS Notes As at March 31,2019  As at March 31,2018
1. Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 4 6.296.26 6,522.59
(b) Capital work-in-progress 385.80 -
(¢) Goodwill 5a 11,686.75 11,077.61
(d) Other intangible assets 5 37,773.99 36,576.74
(e) Intangible assets under development 36 2,520.59 3,229.84
(f) Financial assets
(i) Other financial assets 9 6,778.44 6,686.89
(2) Income tax assets (net) 2,009.65 2,054.08
(h) Other non-current assets 10 120.34 181.14
Total Non-current assets 67,571.82 66,328.89
2. Current assets
(a) Inventories 6 - 7.40
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 7 13,525.42 8,314.04
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 8a 1,838.77 213.62
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 8b 56.45 930.58
(iv) Other financial assets 9 6,184.63 7,674.36
(¢) Income tax assets (net) 1,012.23 23.06
(d) Other currenlt assets 10 2,088.26 1,297.06
Total Current assets 24,705.76 18,460.12
Total assets 92,277.58 84,789.01
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 11 217.16 217.16
(b) Other equity 12 28.347.33 33,582.10
Total Equity 28,564.49 33.799.26
Liabilities
L. Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13 24,472.66 18,254.73
(ii) Other financial liabilities 14 130.81 -
(b) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 24 8,619.03 9,665.10
(¢) Provisions 16 463.77 425.34
(d) Other non-current liabilities 17 415,78 348.31
Total Non-current liabilities 34,102.05 28,693.48
2. Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 18 16,979.55 10,403.99
(ii) Trade payables 2,761.71 2,297.35
(iii) Other financial liabilities 15 7.719.33 8,471.82
(b) Provisions 16 3023 17.05
(¢) Current tax liabilities 293.72 290.99
(d) Other current liabilities 17 1.826.50 815.07
Total current liabilitics 29.611.04 22.296.27
Total liabilities 63,713.09 50.989.75
Total equity and liabilities 92,277.58 84,789.01

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements | to 38

In terms of our report attached
For Dcloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 29,2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

s

Ran xrl;i_shnan
Sankaranarayanan
Director
DIN 02696897

Sapicet Limbachaya

Company Sccretary
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Prime Focus Technologies Limited
Consolidated Financial Statements March 31, 2019

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (Rs in lakh)
Particulars Notes For the year ended For the year ended
March 2019 March 2018
Income
Revenue from operations 19 29,061.63 34,649.95
Other income 20 1,149.86 243.82
Total income 30,211.49 34,893.77
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 21 13,761.64 14,101.03
Employee stock option expense 459.88 215.29
Technical service cost 4,502.51 3,047.69
Depreciation and amortisation expense 4&5 5,365.23 5,437.97
Other expenditure 22 8,623.36 8,488.21
Finance costs 23 5,527.45 2,960.86
Exchange loss/(gain) (net) 13.17 (14.86)
Total expenses 38,253.24 34,236.19
(Loss )/profit before tax (8,041.75) 657.58
Tax expense
Current tax 10.90 473.15
Deferred tax (credit) (1,050.79) (1,345.29)
Total tax expense 24 (1,039.89) (872.14)
(Loss)/profit after tax (7,001.86) 1,529.72
Other comprehensive income
A (i) items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurements of defined benefit plans 13.50 10.34
(ii) Income taxrelating on above 4.72) (3.61)
B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Exchange difference in translating the financial
statements of foreign operations 1,298.43 193.99
Total other comprehensive income 1,307.21 200.72
Total other comprehensive income for the year (5,694.65) 1,730.44
Earnings per equity share of face value of Rs. 10 each 26
(a) Basic (in rupees) (322.43) 70.44
(b) Diluted (in rupees) (32243) 68.80

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements 1 to 38

In terms of our report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants

Aot

Abhijit A. Damle

Partner

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 29,2019

aranarayanan
Director

Ssnlk'et Limbachaya
Company Secretary

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Vi

/W

Director
DIN :- 02648177



Prime Focus Technologies Limited

Consolidated Financial Statements March 31, 2019

Consolidated statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31,2019

A. Equity Share Capital

(Rs in lakh)
Particulars Amount
Balance as at March 31,2017 217.16
Change in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at March 31,2018 217.16
Change in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at March 31,2019 217.16

B. Other Equity

- {Rs in Iakh)
Reserwes and Surplus
Particulars Other Total
Compulsorily comprehensive
Debenture Share options convertible income-Foreign
Redemiion Securities General outstanding debentures currency
Reserve Premium Reserve account l earnings | translation reserve

Balance as at March 31,2017 1.870.75 4,438.76 - 470,33 3,000.00 22,038.20 (181.67)! 31,636.37
Transfemed to/from (1,870 75) - 1,870 75 - - - - -
Related (0 employee siock options - 21529 21529
Profit for the year . 1,52972 1.529 72
Other conprehensive income - - - - 673 193 99 200.72
Balance as al March 31,2018 4,438.76 1,870.75 685.62 3,000.00 23,874,658 12.32 33582.10
On lapse/forfeiture of vested options - - (73.09) - 7309 - -
Related 10 employee stock options 459 88 - 459.88
Loss for the year - - (7,001 86) - (7,001 86)
Other conwreliensive income - - - - - 878 1,298 43 130721
Bulance s at March 31.2019 4,438.76 1,870.75 1,072.41 3,000.00 16,654.66 1,310,758 28.347.33
See accompanying notes 1o the | 1to38
T terne of our repon attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells For and on behall of the Board of Directors /\/\/

Chartered Accountants

Abhijit A. Damlte
Parmer

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 29,2019

# Simket Limbachaya
Company Secretary

“ Director
DIN :- 02648177




Prime Focus Technologies Limited
Consolidated Financial Statements March 31, 2019

Consolidated Cash flow statement (Rs in lakh)
Year Ended March 31, Year Ended March 31,

Particulars 2019 2018

Cash flow from Operating activities
(Loss)/ Profit before tax (8,041.75) 657.58
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization expense 5,365.23 5,437.97
Net gain on sale of property, plant and equipment (39.83) -
Provision for doubtful debts 119.79 57.43
Interest income (1,073.81) (234.74)
Finance cost 5,527.45 2,960.86
Stock options expenses 459.88 215.29
Operating profit before working capital changes 2,316.96 9,094.39
Changes in working capital ¢

Increase in trade and other payables 194.33 2,146.73
Decrease/(Increase) in Inventory 7.40 (1.06)
[ncrease in trade and other receivables (4,487.84) (8,014.98)
Cash (used in)/ generated from operations (1,969.15) 3,225.08
Income taxes paid (net of refunds) (952.84) (323.48)
Net cash flow (used in)/ generated from operating activities (A) (2,921.99) 2,901.60
Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of Property, plant & equipment and Intangible assets (5.386.51) (10,713.59)
Proceeds from sale of Property, plant & equipment 72.86 -
Loans given to fellow subsidiary - (6,343.14)
Loans repaid by fellow subsidiary - 6,343.14
Margin money and fixed deposits under lien 874.13 (209.40)
Interest received 886.36 190.38
Payment on acquisition of subsidiary (including deferred consideration) (1,299.27) (4,877.54)

Net cash flow used in investing activities (B)

(4,852.43)

(15,610.15)




Prime Focus Technologies Limited
Consolidated Financial Statements March 31, 2019

Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from non-current borrowings 11,482.98 20,347.81
Repayment of non-current borrowings (4,501.38) (12,852.21)
Proceeds from current borrowings 6,575.56 8,220.37
Finance cost paid (4,624.05) (3,001.55)
Net cash flow generated from financing activities (C) 8,933.11 12,714.42
Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 1,158.69 5.87
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 213.62 603.88
Effect of foreign exchange translation 466.46 (396.13)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer note 8.a) 1,838.77 213.62
Notes:

Non-cash transaction:

a. During the year, the Company acquired 100% shares of Apptarix Mobility Solution Private Limited,

The purchase consideration included cash payment of Rs. 125.00 lakh and Non-convertible redeemable preference shares value
Rs. 246.49 lakh

b. During the year ended March 31, 2018, deferred consideration amounting to Rs. 2020.44 lakh (GBP 2.5 million) payable for
acquisition of Prime Post Europe Limited has been discharged by assignment of short term credit facility from bank.

c. Disclosures as per ammendments to IND AS 7 are as follows:

Borrowing- Non current 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Opening 22,261.57 15,320.55
Cash flow 6,981.60 7.495.60
Non cash movement 123.95 (554.59)
Closing 29,367.12 22,261.57
Borrowing- Current 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Opening 10,403.99 163.18
Cash flow 6,575.56 10,240.81
Non cash movement - 2,020.44
Closing 16,979.55 10,403.99

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements 1 to 38

In terms of our report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells = For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants :
S )

Ramakrishnan /ui ant Fadia

Abhijit A. Damle Sankaranarayanan 4
Director Director
Partner
DIN :- 02696897 DIN :- 02648177
et e
Place: Mumbai Sanket Limbachaya
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Corporate information

Prime Focus Technologies Limited (‘the Company and 'the Holding Company') and all its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as 'Group') are engaged in the business of providing digital technological solutions to the sports, film, broadcast,
advertising and media industries. Prime Focus Limited is the Ultimate Holding Company, with subsidiaries as in note 1.1
below . The address of the Company’s registered office is Prime Focus Technologies Limited, True North, Plot no 63,
Road No 13, Opp. Hotel Tunga Paradise MIDC, Andheri (East), Mumbai — 400093, India.

1.1 Subsidiaries of the Group

The consolidated financial statements relate to Prime Focus Technologies Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries as
listed below:

Name of subsidiaries Principal activity Country of Current year Previ:)us period
incorporation ercentage of holding |percentage of holding
Prime Focus Digital Asset England & Wales .
Technologies UK Management 100% 100%
Limited
Prime Focus Post Production USA o
Technologies Inc. Services i 0075
Apptarix Mobility Technology and India
Solutions Pvt Ltd Software services L0056 b
Subsidiary Company of Prime Focus Technologies Inc.
DAX PFT LLC | Pre-production [ USA l 100% ] 100%
Subsidiary Company of DAX PFT LLC
DAX Cloud ULC | Pre-production | Canada | 100% ] 100%
I Subsidiary Company of Prime Focus Technologies UK Limited
drime { ‘
Prime P.ost. (Europe)  |Content ma_magement England & Wales 100% 100%
Limited services
Prime Focus MEAD FZ |Content me}nagement UAE 100% NA
LLC Services
2. Significant accounting policies
2.1 Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (herein after
referred to as ‘Ind AS’) including the Accounting standards notified under the relevant provisions of Companies Act, 2013.

2.2 Basis of preparation R T

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and / or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope
of Ind AS 102, leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 17, and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realizable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurements in its entirety, which are described as follows:

vel 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access
2 measurement date; 1
oid e\‘{l | 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are gb’s_er_vablc for the assets or liability,

L-iil-'le" directly or indirectly; and \

o :Lj ¢l 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

v
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All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Group’s normal operating cycle and other
criteria as set out in the Division II of Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and services
and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Group has
ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

Group’s financial statement are presented in India Rupees (%) which is the functional currency of the Company.

2.3 Use of Estimates .

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires the Management to make estimates and assumptions
considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) and the reported income and
expenses during the year. The Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results could differ due to this estimates and the difference between the actual
results and the estimates are recognised in the period in which the results are known/materialise.

2.4 Basis of Consolidation .

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

+ has power over the investee;

« is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its investment with the investee: and

« has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls, an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Company has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when the
voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to ditect the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not the Company’s voting rights in an investee
are sufficient to give its power, including:

« the size of the Company’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;
* potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote hoiders or other parties;

« rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and -

« any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Company has, or does not have, the current ability to direct
the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at previous shareholders’
meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Company
loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenscs of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year/
period are included in the consolidated statement of profit and loss from the date the Company gains control until the date
when the Company ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests even if the results in the non-controlling interests have a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

2.4.1 Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over the

subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling
———ijuterests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
Jich the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair-value of the consideration paid or-received is recognised
in equity and attributed to owners of the Company. /}

o\ W)iefv’ 1e Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recogrised in profit or loss and is cnlc’:u_}zéd as the difference
\\?:\‘- _Hetween (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration réceived an the fair value of any. fetained interest and (ii)

+*
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the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interests. All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified / permitted by applicable Ind AS). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under Ind AS 109, or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.

2.5 Business Combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as.the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquire and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange of control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except
that: i

« deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related ‘to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Taxes and Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

« liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with Ind AS 102 Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see note 2.12); and

» assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105 Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transfetred, the amount of any non-controlling interests
in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.

In case of a bargain purchase, before recognising a gain in respect thereof, the Group determines whether there exists clear
evidence of the underlying reasons for classifying the business combination as a bargain purchase. Thereafter, the Group
reassesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and recognises any
additional assets or liabilities that are identified in that reassessment. The Group then reviews the procedures used to
measure the amounts that Ind AS requires for the purpose oi caiculating the bargain purchase. If the gain remains after this
reassessment and review, the Group recognises it in other comprehensive income and accumulates the same in equity as
capital reserve. This gain is attributed to the acquirer. If there does not exist clear evidence of the underlying reasons for
classifying the business combination as a bargain purchase, the Group recognises the gain, after reassessing and reviewing
(as described above), directly in equity as capital reserve. .
Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and eglt.itle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s
net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at the fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’ s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis
is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value or, when
applicable, on the basis specified in another Ind AS.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with corresponding adjustments
against goodwill or capital reserve, as the case may be. Measureriient period adjustments are adjustments that arise from
additional information obtained during the ‘measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date)
about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that we do not qualify as
measurement period adjustment depends on how the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that

K@_lﬂﬁ% jassified as equity is not re-measured at subsequent repoiting dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted. for within
2 .
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quitd, Contingent consideration that is classified as an 4ssét or a liability is re-measured at fair value at subsequent
\ 1 dates with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. - / )
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When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to its acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts
arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other

comprehensive income and reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest were
disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that date.

2.6 Goodwill
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
(see note 2.5 above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any. «

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s cash generating units (or groups of
cash generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when
there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recovernble amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its
carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
and then to the other assets of the unit prorate based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit, Any impairment loss
for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods. ‘

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the
profit or loss on disposal.

2.7 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration for the sale of services and products in the ordinary course of the
Group's activities. Revenue is shown net of applicable taxes. ‘

[ ffective April 1, 2018, the Group adopted Ind AS 115, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” using the cumulative
catch-up transition method applied to contracts that were not completed as at April 1, 2018. Ind AS 115 replaces Ind AS
18 Revenue and Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts. In accordance with the cumulative catch-up transition method, the
comparatives have not been retrospectively adjusted — i.c. the Comparative information continues to be reported under Ind
AS 18 and Ind AS 11. The adoption of the new accounting standard has not resulted in any changes in the opening retained
carnings of the Group. The adoption of Ind AS | 15, did not have any impact on the statement of profit and loss for the year
ended March 31, 2019.

2.7.1 Rendering of services

The Group provides a variety of digital technological sclutions tothe sports, film, broadcast, advertising and media
industries,

Revenue from technical services, including creative services. is recognised on the basis of services rendered. Revenue on
time-and-material contracts are recognized as the related services are performed and the revenues from the end of the last
billing to the balance sheet date are recognized as unbilled revenues. Revenue from services provided under fixed price
contracts, where the outcome can be estimated reliably, is recognized following the percentage of completion method,
where revenue is recognized in proportion to the progress of the contract activity. The progress of the contract activity is
usually determined as a proportion of hours spent/ units processed up o the balance sheet date, which bears to the total
hours/units estimated for the contract. If losses are expected on contracts these are recognized when such losses become
evident.

ed revenue is included within ‘other financial assets’ and billing in advance is included as deferred revenue in
urrent labilities’. '
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Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive payment has been established

(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of income can be measured
reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis by reference to the principal
outstanding and the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

2.7.3 Rental Income
The Group’s policy for recognition of revenue from operating leases is described in note 2.8.1 below

2.8 Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as opérating leases.

2.8.1 The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of the Group’s net investment
in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on
the Group’s net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is generally recognised on 'straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the Group’s
expected inflationary cost increases, such increases are recognised in the year in which such benefits accrue. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

2.8.2 The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance lease are initially recognised as assets of the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease
or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in
the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and reduction of the lease obligations so as to achieve a constant
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses are recognised immediately in profit or loss,
unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
general policy on borrowing costs (see note 2.10 below). Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in
which they are incurred. P20 '

Rental expense from operating leases is generally recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s
expected inflationary cost increases, such increases are recognised in the year in which such benefits accrue. Contingent
rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed.

2.9 Foreign currencies transactions and translations

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the
date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
are not retranslated.

ferences on monetary items are recognised in profit of loss in the period in which they arise gxcept for:,
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« exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for further productive use,
which are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign
currency borrowings; N

« exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to hédge certain foreign currency risks; and

« exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is neither
planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net investment in the foreign operation), which are recognised

initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on repayment of the monetary items.

For the purposes of presenting these consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into Indian Rupees using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income
and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange rates for the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any. are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (and attributed to non-controlling interests
as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign operation of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all
of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation that does not result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of aceumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates
or joint arrangements that do not result in the Group losing significant influence or joint control), the proportionate share
of the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to profit of loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisitions of a foreign
operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.

2.10 Borrowing costs

Borrowing cost includes interest, amortisation of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings
and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the
interest cost. —_

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets. which are charge
or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they oceur. Re-measurement recognised in other
comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss. Past service
cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period of a plan anendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount
rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit Tiability or asset, Defined benefit costs are categorised as
follows:

AT
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2.11 Employee benefits

2.11.1 Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits

Payments to defined contribution plans are recognised as ah expense when employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method,
with actuarial valuation being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. Re-measurement, comprising actuarial
gains and losses, the effect of the changes on the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding net
interest), is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income
in the period in which they occur. Re-measurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in
retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period of a
plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined
benefit liability or asset. Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

o Service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and settlements);
o Net interest expense or income; and
e Re-measurement

The Group presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item ‘Employee benefits
expense’. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus in the Group’s
defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits
available in the form of refunds from the plans or reduction in future contributions to the plans.

A liability for termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the
termination benefit and when the entity recognises any related restructuring costs.

2.11.2 Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in
the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for
that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in respect of services provided by employees’ upto the reporting
date.

2.12 Share-based payment arrangements

2.12.1 Share-based payment transactions of the Group

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar services are measured at the fair value of
the equity instruments at the grant date. Details regarding the-determination of the fair value of equity-settled share-based
transactions are set out in Note 30.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is amortised over the vesting period,
based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At
the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the equity-settléd employee benefits reserve.

2.13 Taxation

xpense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. ECA
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2.13.1 Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year, Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported
in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income o) ‘expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

2.13.2 Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary differences arise from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India, which is likely
to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against future income tax liability. Accordingly, MAT
is recognised as deferred tax asset in the Balance Sheet when the asset when the asset can be measured reliably and it is
probable that the future economic benefit associated with the asset will be realised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is settled or the asset realised, based on the tax rates (and tax laiws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

2.13.3 Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, expect when they related to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the business combination.

2.14 Property, plant and equipment (PPE) and depreciation

PPE are stated at cost of acquisition or construction. They are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment loss, if any. The cost comprises the purchase price and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its
working condition for its intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of PPE is added to its bock value only if it increases the future benefits from the
existing asset beyond its previously assessed standards of performance. All other expenses on existing PPE, including day-
to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for
the period during which such expenses are incurred. .

Depreciation on tangible assets of the Company and its subsidiaries is provided using the straight line method (SLM) as
per useful lives which are similar to the useful life prescribed under Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their eéxpected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets.
___However, when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership wiil be obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are

Jiated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives.

y|d improvement are depreciated over the lease term.
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An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of propetty,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

2.15 Intangible assets and amortisations

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment loss, ifany. Intangible assets are amortised
on a straight line basis over the estimated useful economic lives. =

Software
Software acquired by the Group are amortised on straight line basis over the estimated useful life of six years. Internally
generated intangible assets are amortised over a period of six to twenty years.

2.15.1 Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful lives and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounting for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

2.15.2 fnternally-generated intangible assets — research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expehée}if@ the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an internal project)
is recognised if, and only if all of the following have been demonstrated:

o the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that.it will be available for use or sale;

« the intention to complete the intangible asset and use it of sell if;

o the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

o how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits;

o the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset; and

« the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible assets is the sum of expenditure incurred from the date
when the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-generated intangible asset
can be recognised, development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are separately acquired.

2.15.3 Intangible assets acquired in a business combinations

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and recognised separately from goodwill are initially recognised at
their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regard as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a business combination are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Finite-lived intangible assets that were acquired in a business combination, i.e. Software are amortised on a straight-line
asis over a period of 6 years.

" Sahod of amortisation only starts at the point at which the assets becomes available to produce economic returns.

assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least
and whenever there is an indication that the assets may be impaired.
&,/..,
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2.15.4 De-recognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is de-recognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal,
Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is de-recognised.

2.16 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets. other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest of the cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least
annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

[fthe recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

2.17 Inventories

[nventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable:value. Costs of inventories are determined on a first-in-first out
basis. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs for completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.

2.18 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision
is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash tlow (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable

can be measured reliably. M

iy
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2.18.2 Contingent liabilities acquired in a business combination

Contingent liabilities acquired in a business combination are initially measured at fair value at the acquisition date. At the
end of subsequent reporting periods, such contingent liabilities are measured at the higher of the amount that would be
recognised in accordance with Ind AS 37 and the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with Ind AS 18 Revenue.

2.19 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group entity becomes a party t0 the contractual provisions
of the instruments. ‘ g

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial

liabilitics at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
2.20 Financial assets

All regular way purchases of sales of financial assets are recognised or de-recognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets arc subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending
on the classification of the financial assets. '

2.20.1 Classification of financial assets o

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost (except for debt
instruments that are designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

o the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and
o the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

For the impairment policy on financial assets measured at amortised cost, refer note 2.20.5

Debt instruments that meets the following conditions are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(except for debt instruments that are designed as at fair value t’hrough profit or loss on initial recognition):

o the asset is held withina business model whose objective is achicved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets; and

o the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss for Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) debt
instruments. For the purposes of recognising foreign exchange gains and losses, FVTOCI debt instruments are treated as
financial assets measured at amortised cost. Thus, exchange differences on the amortised cost are recognised in profit or
loss and other changes in the fair value of FVTOCI financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income. When
the investment is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated is reclassified to profit or loss.

For the impairment policy on dent instruments at FVTOCI, refet Note 2.20.5
All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
2.20.2 Effective interest method

The effective interest is a method of calculating the a|110n1'§1-:t1;p{151 of debt instruments and of allocating interest income

__—overthe relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including

and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other

p;ﬁ'r\tm or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where applicable, a shorlcr:p:riod, to the net

rm:;j_-rf-};j‘ngfa_l ount on initial recognition. /52~
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Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as at Fair
Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL). Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in the “Other income”
line item.

2.20.3 Investments in equity instruments at FYTOCI

On initial recognition, the Group can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to present the
subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income pertaining 10 investments in equity instruments. This
¢lection is not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading. These elected investments are initially measured at fair
value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in
fair value recognised in other comprehensive income. The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to profil or loss on
disposal of the investments. ’

A financial asset is held for trading if:

« it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; Or

o on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group manages together and has
a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or a financial guarantee.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the Company has right to receive
the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity,
the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured
reliably. Dividends recognised in profit or loss are included in the ‘Other income’ line item.

2.20.4 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL)

[nvestments in equity instruments are classified as FVTPL, unless the Group irrevocably elects on initial recognition to
present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income for investments in equity instruments which are
not held for trading (see note 2.20.3 above).

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria ot FVTOCI criteria (see above) are measured at FVTPL. In
addition, debt instruments that meet the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria but are designated as at FVTPL are
measured at FVTPL.

A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the FVTOCI criteria may be designated
as at FETPL upon initial measurement if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different
basis. The Group has not designated any debt instruments at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising
on re-measurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend
or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the ‘Other income’ line item.

Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recognised when the Group’s right to receive dividend is established, it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity the dividend does not represent a recovery
of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

2.20.5 Impairment of financial assets

The Group applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised
cost, debt instruments at FVTOCI, lease receivables, {rade receivables, other contractual rights to receive cash or other
financial asset, and financial guarantees not designated as at FVTPL.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default oceurring as the weights.
Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due 10 the Group in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects 1o receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest
rute (or eredit-adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets). The Group
estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument ( for example, prepayment, extension,
call and similar options) through the expected life of that financial instrument.

Group measures the loss allowance for a financial ingirument at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses if
+dit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, I the credit risk on-a financial
1ent has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for that financial
1ent at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. 12-month expected credit losses are portion of the lifer
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time expected credit losses that represent the lifetime cash shortfalls that will result if default occurs within the 12 months
after the reporting date and thus, are not cash shortfalls that are predicted over the next 12 months.

If the Group measured loss allowance for a financial instrument at lifetime expected credit loss model in the previous
period, but determines at the end of a reporting period  that the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial
recognition due to improvement in credit quality as compared to the previous period, the Group again measures the loss
allowance based on 12-month expected credit losses.

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument instead of the
change in the amount of expected credit losses. To make that assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or
effort, that is indicative of significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are
within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18, the Group always measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime
expected credit losses.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the Group has used a
practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. This expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision
matrix which takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information.

The impairment requirements for the recognition and measurement of a loss allowance are equally applied to debt
instruments at FVTOCI except that the loss allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income and is not reduced
from the carrying amount in the balance sheet.

2.20.6 De-recognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for the amouats it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or foss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised
in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset.

On de-recognition of financial asset other than its entirety (e.g.' when the Group retains an option to repurchase part of the
a transferred asset), the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to
recognise under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer
recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss
allocated to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or losses if such gain or loss
would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposai of that financial asset. A cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated bétween the part that continues to be recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised
on the basis of the relative fair value of those parts.

2.20.7 Foreign exchange gains and losses

The fair value of financial assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated
at the sport rate at the end of each reporting period.

o For foreign currency denominated financial assets measured at amortised cost and FVTPL, the exchange differences are
recognised in profit or loss except for those which are designated as hedging instruments in a hedging relationship.
o Changes in the carrying amount of investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI relating to changes in foreign currency

1e purposes of recognising foreign exchange gains and losses, FVTOCI debt instruments are treated as hudneml
measured at amortised cost. Thus, exchange differences on the amortised cost are recognised in. .profit or. loss and

anges in the fair value of FVTOCI financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive incomé. )
Financial liabilities and equity instruments K/’ '
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2.21.1 Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangement and the definitions of a financial liability and equity instrument.

2.21.2 Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a Group entity are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Group’s own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is

recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s own equity instruments.

2.21.3 Compound financial instruments

The component parts of compound financial instruments (convertible notes) issued by the Group are classified separately
as financial liabilities and equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument. A conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of
cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the Group’s own equity instruments is an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for similar
non-convertible instruments. This amount is recognised as a liability on an amortised cost basis using the effective interest
method until extinguished upon conversion or at the instrument’s maturity date.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined by deducting the amount of the liability component from the fair
value of the compound financial instrument as a whole. This is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax effects,
and is not subsequently re-measured. 1n addition, the conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity until the
conversion option is exercised, in which case, the balance recognised in equity will be transferred to other component of
equity. When the conversion option remains unexercised at the maturity date of the convertible note, the balance recognised
in equity will be transferred to retained earnings. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration
of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible notes are allocated to the liability and equily components in
proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity component are recognised directly
in equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component are included in the carrying amount of the liability
component and are amortised over the lives of the convertible notes using the effective interest method.

2.21.4 Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of & financial asset does not quality for de-recognition or when the
continuing involvement approach applies, financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group, and commitments issued by
the Group to provide a loan at below-market interest rate are measured in accordance with the specific accounting policies
set out below.

2.21.4.1 Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either contingent consideration recognised by
the Group as an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind A% 103 applies or held for trading or it is designated as at
FVTPL. "

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

« on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group manages together and has
a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

saancial liability other than a financial liability held for trading or contingent consideration recognised by the Group as
S wirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies, may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition
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e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise
arise;

o the financial liability forms part of a Group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with ;thé Group’s documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the Grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and the Ind AS 109 permits the entire combined
contract to be designated as at FVTPL in accordance with Ind AS 109.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is
included in the ‘Other income’ line item.

However, for non-held-for-trading financial liabilities that liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount of change
in fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of the liability is recognised in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes mismatch in profit or loss, in which case these
effects of changes in credit risk are recognised in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s
credit risk that are recognised in other comprehensive income are reflected immediately in retained earnings and are not
subsequently reclassified in profit or loss.

Gains or losses on financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments issued by the Group that are designated by the
Group as at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or Joss.

2.21.4.2 Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at
amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs
of an asset is included in the ‘Finance costs’ line item.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to
the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

2.21.4.3 Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for
a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. R

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated as at
FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

o The amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of Ind AS 109; and
e The amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the ciimulative amount of income recognised in accordance with
the principles of Ind AS 18.

2.21.4.4 Commitments to provide a loan at below-market.interest rate

Commitments to provide a loan at below-market interest rate are initially measured at their fair values and, if not desi gnated
as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of: - :

o the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with imf)iiirment requirements of Ind AS 109; and
« the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance with
the principles of Ind AS 18.

2.21.4.5 Foreign exchange gains and losscs

_ For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost at the end of each

ing period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the amortised cost of the instfiuments and

ognised in ‘Other income’, (Y \
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The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated
at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period. For financial liabilities that are measured as at EVTPL, the foreign
exchange component forms part of the fair value gains or 10sses and is recognised in profit or loss.

2.21.4.6 De-recognition of financial liabilities

The Group de-recognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group's abligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. An exchange between with a lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as
an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recoghition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial
modification of the terms of an existing financial liability (whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of a debtor)
is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

2.22 Derivative financial instruments

The Group enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure 10 interest rate and foreign
exchange rate risks, including foreign exchange forward contracts, interest rate swaps and cross currency swaps.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately.

2.22.1 Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non- derivative host contracts that are not financial assets within the scope of Ind AS 109 are
{reated as separate derivatives when their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contracts and
the host contracts are not measured at FVTPL.

2.23 New accounting standards not yet adopted:

Certain new standards, amendments 10 standards and interpretations are not yet effective for annual periods
beginning after April 01, 2018 and have not been applied in preparing these consolidated (inancial statements. New
standards, amendments t0 standards and interpretations that could have potential impact on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group are:

2.23.1 Ind AS 116

On March 30, 2019, the Ministry of Corporat¢ Affairs issued Ind AS 1 16, Leases. Ind AS 116 will replace the
existing leases Standard, Ind AS 17 Leases, and related initerpretations. The standard sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases. [ND AS 116 introduces & single lessee accounting
model and requires & lessee Lo recognised assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months,
unless the underlying asset is of low value. The Standard also contains enhanced disclosure requirements for
lessees. '

The standard allows for two methods of transition:

o the full retrospective approach, requires entities 10 retrospectively apply the new standard to each prior reporting
period presented and the entities need to adjust equity at {he beginning of the carliest comparative period presented,
or

e the modified retrospective approach, under which the date of initial application of the new-leases standard, lessees
recognise the cumulative effect of initial application as an adjustment to the opening balance of equity as at annual
periods beginning on Or after January 1, 2019.

The Group will adopt this standard using modified retrospective method effective April 1,2019, and accordingly,
comparative for year ended March 31, 2018 and 2019, will not be retrospectively adjusted. The Group has

d certain available practical expedients on transition. The Group is in the process of evaluating the impact
h amended standard. :
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2232 Amendment to Ind AS 12 — Income Taxes

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to Ind AS 12 — Income Taxes. The
amendments clarify that an entity shall recognise the income tax consequences of dividends on financial
instruments classified as equity should be |'c.cognisc:l according to where the entity originally recognised those
past transactions or events that generated distributable profits were recognised. The effective date of these
amendments is annual periods beginning on or after April 1,2019. The Group is currently assessing the impact of
this amendment on the consolidated financial statements.

Appendix C to Ind AS 12 - Uncertainty over income tex treatments

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued Appendix C to Ind AS 12, which clarifies the accounting
for uncertainties in income taxes. The interpretation is to be applied to the determination of taxable profit (tax
foss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax
treatments under Ind AS 12. The entity has to consider the probability of the relevant taxation authority accepting
the tax treatment and the determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits
and tax rates would depend upon the probability. The effective date for adoption of Appendix C to Ind AS 12 s
April 1,2019. The Group will apply Appendix C to Ind AS 12 prospectively from the effective date and the effect
on adoption of Ind AS 12 on the consolidated financial statement is expected to be insignificant.

2233 Amendment to Ind AS 19 - Plan Amendment, Curtaiiment or Settlement

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to Ind AS 19, ‘Employee Benefits’, in
connection with accounting for plan amendments, curtailments and settlements requiring an entity to determine
the current service costs and the net interest for the period after the re-measurement using the assumptions used
for the re-measurement; and determine the net irzerest for the remaining period based on the re-measured net
defined benefit liability or asset. These amendments Gre effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after April 1. 2019. The Group will apply the amendment from the effective date and the effect on adoption of the
amendment on the consolidated financial statement is expected (o be insignificant.

2.24 Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are off set and the net amount is'presented when and only when, the Group has
legally enforceable right to setoff the amount it intense, either to settle them on a net basis or 10 realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

2.25 Cash & cash equivalent

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents consists of cash on hand and in banks and demand deposits with banks, which can
be withdrawn at any time, without prior notice or penalty on the principal.

For the purposes of cash flow Statement, cash and cash equivalent comprise cash and cheques in hand, bank balances,
demand deposits with banks, net of outstanding bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and considered part of the
Groups’s cash management system. In the balance sheet, bank: overdraft are presented under borrowings within current
financial liabilities.

2.26 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent witly internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision

Maker (CODM) of the Company. The CODM is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performances of the
operating segments of the Group.

2.27 Events after reporting date

Where events occurring after the balance sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting
periad; the-impact of such event is adjusted within the financial staiements. Otherwise, events after the balance sheet date
/@’ n‘tg,‘tcti'id_r’s;i,_ic‘or nature ate only disclosed.
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3. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in note 2, the management of the Group is
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experiences and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is reviewed if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and flIlLlIC periods.

3.1.1 Revenue recognition

The revenue recognised on fixed price contracts is dependent on the estimated percentage of completion at a point in time,
which is calculated on the basis of the man hours/units of work performed as a percentage of the estimated total man
hours/units to complete a contract. The actual man hours/units and estimated man hours/units to complete a contract are
updated on a monthly basis. -

The estimated man hours/units remaining to complete a project are judgemental in nature and are estimated by experienced
staff using their knowledge of the time necessary to the work.

If a contract is expected to be loss making, based on estimated costs to complete, the expected loss is recognised
immediately.

3.1.2 Taxation

The Group makes estimates in respect of tax liabilities and tax assets. Full provision is made for deferred and current
taxation at the rates of tax prevailing at the year-end unless future rates have been substantively enacted. These calculations
represent our best estimate of the costs that will be incurred and recovered but actuals may differ from the estimates made
and therefore affect future financial results. The effects would be recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Deferred tax assets arise in respect of unutilised losses ana-: -other timing differences to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the dssef'éan be utilised or to the extent they can be offset against
related deferred tax liabilities. In assessing recoverability, estimation is made of the future forecasts of taxable profit. If
these forecast profits do not materialise, they change, or there are changes in tax rates or to the period over which the losses
or timing differences might be recognised, then the value of deferred tax assets will need to be revised in a future period.

The Group has losses and other timing differences for whicii no vall e has been recognised for deferred tax purposes in this
consolidated financial statements. This situation can arise where'fh# future economic benefit of these timing differences is
estimated to be not probable. It can also arise where the timing differences are of such a nature that their value is dependent
on only certain types of profit being earned, such as capital profits. If trading or other appropriate profits are earned in
future, these losses and other timing differences may yield benefit to the Group in the form of a reduced tax charge.

The major tax jurisdictions for the Group are India, United States of America and United Kingdom. Significant judgments
are involved in determining the provision for income taxes including judgment on whether tax positions are probable of
being sustained in tax assessments. A tax assessment can involve complex issues, which can only be resolved over extended
time periods.

3.1.4 Impairment of goodwill

Determining, whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which
goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to
arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value. Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss mdy arise. The management concluded that no adjustment to

“ n

goodwill was required as at the balance sheet date, R
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3.1.5 Depreciation/amortisation and useful lives of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated over the estimated useful lives of the assets, after taking into account their
estimated residual value. Intangible assets are amortised over its estimated useful lives. The Group reviews the estimated
useful lives of all such assets at the end of each reporting period. There has been no requirement to revise to useful lives of
any such assets as at the Balance Sheet date.

3.1.6 Fair value measurements and valuation process

Some of the Group’s assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. Further, the Group
has used valuation experts for the purpose of ascertaining fair vaiue for certain assets and liabilities. In estimating the fair
value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses market-observable data to the extent that it is available. Where Level 1 inputs
are not available, the Group engages third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The Chief Financial Officer
works closely with the qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model.
The Chief Financial Officer reports the valuation findings to the Board of Directors of the Group to explain the cause of
fluctuations in the fair value of the assets and liabilities. L

3.1.7 Expected credit losses on financial assets

The impairment provision of financial assets are based on assumption about risk of default and expected timing of
collection. The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation,
based on the Group’s history of collections, customer’s creditworthiness, existing market condition as well as forward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

3.1.8 Provision

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future outflow of funds
resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash flow can be reliably estimated. The timing of recognition
and quantification of the liability require the application of judgement to existing facts and circumstances, which can be
subject to change. Since the cash outflows can take place many years in the future, the carrying amounts of provisions and
liabilities are reviewed regularly and adjusted to take account of changing facts and circumstances.

s

3.1.9 Defined benefit obligation

The costs of providing other post-employment benefits are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in accordance with
Ind AS 19 “Employee benefits” over the period during which benefits is derived from the employees’ services and is
determined based on valuation carried out by independent actuary. The costs are determined based on assumptions selected
by the management. These assumptions include salary escalation rate, discount rates, expected rate of return on assets and
mortality rates, Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long term nature, a defined benefit obligation is
highly sensitive to change in these assumptions.

3.1.10 Recoverability of internally generated intangible asset

The Group develops intangible assets internally to assist its business plans and outlook. The Group capitalises various
costs, including employee costs, incurred in such development activities. Selection of the intangible asset eligible for
capitalisation, identification of the expenses that are directly attributable and reasonably allocable to development of
intangible assets involves significant management judgement. Further, the Group considers recoverability of the Group’s
internally generated intangible assets as at the end of each reporting period. Detailed analysis was carried out by the
management as at March 31, 2019 regarding recoverability of its internally generated intangible assets and no exceptions
noted.

P
‘rft"_.r \\\ e\
- \BD o\
6 BARODA ):m
K *

"‘-._‘_\_‘_ e

N

—

o

s



Prime Focus Technologies Limited
Consolidated Financial Statements March 31,2019

4, Property, plant and equipment

(Rs in lakh)
Plant and Leasehold Furniture and Electrical

equipment Improvements fixtures Fittings Office equipment Vehicles o
Gross block
As at April 01,2017 10,531.21 4,595.98 799.40 744.16 6,074.05 9.16 22,753.96
Additions 1,121.71 358 0.89 101,71 30.68 - 1,258.57
Disposals - - - - = - =
Exchange
differences/adjus tment (203.33) 720 10.11 - 277.26 - 91.24
As at March 31,2018 11,449.59 4,606.76 810.40 845.87 6,381.99 9.16 24,103.77
Depreciation
As at Aptil 01,2017 7,084 63 2,023.37 416 69 214.45 5,710.03 593 15,455.10
For the year 1,179.96 514.61 5744 74.84 226,16 120 2,054.21
Disposals - . ez s - = -
Exchange
differences/adjustinent (22.80) 1,83 V.84 - G200 - 71.87
As at March 31,2018 8,241.79 2,539.81 474.97 289.29 6,028.19 713 17,581.18
Net block
As at March 31,2018 3,207.80 2,066.95 335.43 556.58 353.80 2.03 6,522.59
(Rs in lakh)
Pl:\.nt and Leasehold Furniture and El‘ecfrical Office equipment Vehicles Total
equipment Improvenents fixtures Filtings
Gross block
As al April 01,2018 11,449.59 4,606.76 81040 845.87 6,381.99 9.16 24,103.77
Additions | 1,361.27 5522 46 59 57.16 55.46 - 1,575.70
Acquisitions 7.84 - 0,07 - 105 . 896
Disposals (37.63) - - - - (9.16) 46.79)
Exchange
differences/adjustiment 94.60 64.01 16.58 . 34586 - 521.05
As at March 31,2019 12,875.67 4,725.99 873.04 903.03 6,784.36 - 26,162.69
Depreciation
As at April 01,2018 8,241.79 2,539.81 47497 289.29 6,028.19 713 17,581.18
For the yeat 1,071.89 450.34 5925 79.05 148 98 0.51 1,810.02
Acquisitions 744 - 0.03 - 1.02 - 8.49
Disposals 6.13) - - - - (7.64) 13.77
Exchange
differences/adjustiment T8.57 46 74 14.95 - 340.25 - 480.51
As at March 31,2019 9,393,506 3,036.89 549,20 368.34 6,518.44 - 19,866.43
Net block
As at March 31,2019 JAB2.11 1,689.10 J24.44 534.69 16592 - 6,296,206

a)  Plant and equipment includes assets taken on finance lease as under :
Gross block: Rs. 3,398.35 lakh (March 31,2018 Rs. 2,802.41 lakh)
Depreciation charge for the year: Rs. 410.52 lakh (March 31, 2018 Rs. 525.10 lakh)
Accumulated depreciation: Rs. 1,976.09 lakh (March 31, 2018 Rs: 1,709.08 lakh)
Net block: Rs. 1,422.26 lakh (March 31, 2018 Rs. 1,693.33 lakh)

b) Refer note 13 and 18 regarding details of borrowings, where assets have been placed as security.
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5. Other Intangible assets

Rs. inlakh
Software
Gross block
As at April 01, 2017 45,163.92
Additions 455.56
Deductions -
Exchange differences 6.34
As at March 31,2018 45,625.82
Amortisation
As at April 01,2017 5,650.59
For the year 3,383.76
Deductions -
Exchange differences 14.73
As at March 31,2018 9,049.08
Net block
As at March 31,2018 36,576.74
Software
Gross block
As at April 01,2018 45,625.82
Additions 4,225.78
Acquisitions 336.41
Deductions -
Exchange differences 232.15
As at March 31,2019 50,420.16
Amortisation
As at April 01, 2018 9,049.08
For the year 3,555.21
Acquisition
Deductions -
Exchange differences 41.88
As at March 31,2019 12.646.17
Net block
As atMarch 31,2019 37,773.99
Notes:
a) Softwares includes assets taken on finance lease as under:

Gross block:  550.05 lakh (March 31, 2018 ¥ 599.73 lakh)

Depreciation charge for the year: T 87.21 lakh (March 31, 2018 94,00 lakh)
Accumulated depreciation: ¥ 360.73 lakh (March 31,2018 275.04 lakh)
Net block: Z 189.32 lakh (March 31, 2018 ¥ 324.68 lakh)

Goodwill: The group has a goodwill aggregating to Rs. 11,686.75 lakh (March 31, 2018 Rs. 11,077.61 lakh) as on
the balance sheet date.
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6. Inventories

(Rs in lakh)

As at March 31,2019

As at March 31,2018

Inventories (lower of cost and net realisable value)

Tapes

7.40

Total

7.40

7.  Trade Receivables (Unsecured)

(Rs in lakh

As at March 31,2019

As at March 31,2018

Current

Trade receivables 13,766.54 8,435.37
Less: Loss allowances (241.12) (121.33)
Total 13,525.42 8,314.04

As at March 31,2019

As at March 31,2018

The movement in allowance for doubtful receivables is us

Balance as at the end of the year

follows:

Balance as at the begnning of the year 121.33 63.90

Movement during the year (net) 119.79 57.43
241.12 [ 121.33

The Group has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables
based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted
for forward looking information. The expected credit loss atlowance is based on the ageing of the days the receivable

are due and the rates as given in the provision matrix.

8. Cash and bank balances

(Rs in lakh)

As at March 31,2019

As at March 31,2018

a, Cash and cash equivaients

Cash on hand 1.92 2.09
Bank balinces

In current Accounts 1,836 85 211.53
Total 1,838.77 213.62
b. Balances other than (a) above

Other bank balances

In deposits* 56.45 930.58
Total 56.45 930.58

* Margin monies- fixed deposit accounts represent deposits with original maturity ranging from 1 month to 62 months.
These deposits are pledged for availing foreign currency loans- buyer’s credit and as security against fund based and

non-fund based credit facilities availed by Group.

9.  Other financial assets (Unsecured, conisdered good)

(Rs in lakh)

As at March 31,2019

As at March 31,2018

Non-current

Deposits (Reler note 31) 6,778.44 6,686.89
Total 6,778.44 6,686.89
Current

Deposits 26.83 28.95
Unbilled revenue 1,600.28 4,973.64
Interest accrued on deposits 68.25 2.27
Advance to related parties (Refer note 31) 4,367.80 2,669.50
Interest receivable from Government authorities 121.47 .
[ Total 6,184.63 7,674.36
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10. Other Assets (Unsecured, considered good)
: (Rs in lakh)
As at March 31,2019 | As at March 31,2018
Non-current
Capital advances 7.96 17.22
Prepaid expenses 112.38 163.92
Total 120.34 181.14
Current
Other loans and advances 803.18 507.57
Prepaid expenses 1,285.08 789.49
Total 2,088.26 1,297.06
Other loans and advances include, loans and advances to employees and others, advances to suppliers, service
tax receivables and VAT receivables.
[1. Equity Share Capital

(Rs in lakh)

As at March 31,2019 | As at March 31,2018
Authorised share capital:
50,00,000 Bquity shares of X 10/- each 500.00 500.00
Issucd, subscribed and paid-up:
21,71,578 Equity shares of ¥10/- each 217.16 217.16
Total 217.16 217.16
11.1 Reconciliation of the nwnber of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
Fully puid eoquity shares (Rs in lakh)
Year ended March 31,2019 Year ended March 31,2018
Ninmber Amount Number Anwount
Balance s at the beginning ofthe year 21.71,578 21716 21.71,578 217.16
Add: Shares Issued duiing the year - - - =
| Balance as at the end of the year 21,71,578 217.16 21,71,578 217.16

11.2 Shares reserved for issunnce under options
The Company has pranted employee stock options under employees stock options scheme, Each option entitiles the

holder to one equity share of Rs. 10 each

191,606 options wete outstanding as at March 31, 2019 (March 31, 2018- 1,90,970) - Refer note 30

113 Details of shures held by each shuveholder holding more than 5%

As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Numbers % of hulding Numbers % of holding
Prune Focus Lumited 16,01,466 7375% 16.01.466 73.75%
&Ranmklishnan Saukaranarayanan 2,21.602 10.20% 221,602 10.20%

114 Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

The Compuny has one ¢lass ol'equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- per share, Each bolder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per
shate The Comnpany declares and pays dividend in INR
In the event of liguidation of the Company, the holders of'the equity shares will be eatitled to receive temaining assets of the Company, after

distribution of all liabilities. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equily shares held by the sharcholders.
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12.  Other equity

(Rs in lakh)

As at March 31,2019

As at March 31,2018

Debenture redemption reserve

As per last balance sheet - 1.870.75

Movement during the year - (1,870.75)

Securities premium

As per last balance shect 4.438.76 4.438.76

Movement during the year = -
4438.76 4,438.76

General Reserve

As per last balance sheet 1,870.75 -

Movement during the yeur - 1,870.75
1,870.75 1,870.75

Compulsorily convertible debentures

As per fast balance sheet 3.000.00 3.000.00

Movement during the year - -
3,000.00 3,000.00

Retained Earnings (Refer note (a) below)

As per lasl baance sheet 23,574.65 22,038.20

Movement during the year (6,919.99) 1,536.45

16,654.66 23,574.65

Share options outs tanding account

As per last balance sheet 685.62 470.33

Movenent during the year 386.79 215.29
1,072.41 685.62

Other comprehensive income (Foreign currency translation

reserve)

As per last balance sheel 12.32 (181.67)

Movement during the year 1,298.43 193.99
1,310.75 12.32

Total 28,347.33 33,582.10

a. Retained earnings includes re-measurement of defined benefit obligations (net of loss) of Rs. 29.48 lakh

(previous year Rs. 15.98 lakly)

13. Borrowings (Non - Current)

(Rs in lakh)

As at March 31,2019

As at March 31,2018

Term loans (secured)

fiom banks 21.489.88 17.152.12
(Itelirnote (a) (by & (¢ ) below)

Other loan and advances (secured)

Finance lease obligation 2,982.78 1.102.61
(Refer note (¢) below)

Total 24,472.66 18,254.73
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a. Term loans from bank include Rs. NIL (Previous year: Rs. 1,945.00 lakh) taken by Prime Focus Technologies Inc.
(PFT Inc.), which was secured by exclusive first charge on all assets including current assets of PFT Inc., cash margin,
escrow of receivables, pledge of shares of PFT Inc. and DAX PFT LLC, pledge of certain shares of PFT and of the Company
both backed by non-disposal undertaking, corporate guarantee of PFT and personal guarantee of the promoter. Term loan
facility of $ 2 million was repayable in 4 year equal instalments beginning from September 30, 2016 and facility 2 of
$ 2 million was on bullet payment basis points. Interest rate on term loans were based on 6 months Libor plus 450 basis
points. The loan has been fully paid during the year. As at March 31, 2019 Rs. NIL (March 31, 2018: Rs. 1,621.00 lakh) is
included in current maturities of long-term borrowings and balance of Rs. NIL (March 31, 2018: Rs. 304.00 lakh) is
included in long-term borrowings.

b. Term Loan from bank includes Rs. 7,042.29 lakh (USD 11 Mn) (Previous year Rs. NIL) taken by Prime Focus
Techrologies Inc. (PFT Inc.) which is secured by exclusive charge over all current assets and movable fixed assets of Prime
Focus Technologies Inc., USA, DAX PFT LLC- USA, Prime Focus Technologies UK Ltd. & Prime Post Europe Ltd.
(Excluding assets charged against finance leases in normal course of business), pledge over 30% shares and Non Disposal
Undertaking over 70% shares of: Prime Focus Technologies Inc., USA, DAX PFT LLC; USA, Prime Focus Technologies
UK Ltd.& Prime Post Europe Ltd, corporate guarantee of the Company and ultimate holding company and personal
guarantee of promoter of ultimate holding company. Term loan facility is re-payable over 84 months in 26 structured
disbursement from March 31, 2019. Interest rate on term loans are based on 6 months libor plus 385 basis points. As at
March 31, 2019 Rs. 762.53 lakh (Previous year NIL) is included in current maturities of long-term borrowings and balance
of Rs. 6,279.76 lakh (Previous year NIL) is included in long-term borrowings.

¢. The Company has availed a Term Loan facility aggregating to Rs. 15,700 lakh at an interest rate based on one year
MCLR + [.90% with a reset on yearly basis. This term loan is repayable in 84 months from date of the Lst disbursement
including 6 months moratorium, it is to be repaid in 26 quarterly instalments (post 6 months moratorium). Further, during
previous year, the Company availed additional term loan facility aggregating to Rs. 6,000 lakh at an interest rate based on
one year MCLR -+ 1.90% with a reset on yearly basis. This term loan is repayable in 72 months from date of the Ist
disbursement in 25 quarterly instalments. Both the above facilities are secured by exclusive charge over present and future
current assets and movable fixed assets, personal guarantees of promoter of the Holding company, pledge of 30% shares
of the company held by the Holding company, Corporate. Guarantee of Holding Company, exclusive charge by way of
mortgage of immovable properties, pledge of 30% shares of subsidiaries viz; Prime Focus Technologies Inc., DAX LLC,
Prime Focus Technologies Limited UK Limited, Prime Post Europe Limited. The company has created charge over all the
above referred securities except pledge of 30% shares of subsidiaries viz; Prime Focus Technologies Inc., DAX LLC, Prime
Focus Technologies Limited UK Limited, Prime Post Europe Limited, for which the Company is in the process of creating
security as at the balance sheet date. As at March 31, 2019, out of thz above availed facility, the Company took disbursement
of Rs. 21,700.00 lakh. At the year-end, out of the outstanding loan amount Rs. 15,210.12lakh (net of transaction fees) is
disclosed as non-current and Rs. 2,728.31 lakh is disclosed as current. As at March 31, 2018 Rs. 16,847.56 lakh (net of
transaction fees) is disclosed as non-current and Rs. 1,617.64 lakh is disclosed as current.

d. Foreign Currency loans

Foreign currency loans- buyer’s credit of Rs. NIL (March 31, 2018: Rs. 28.78 lakh) was secured against margin monies-
fixed deposits pledged. Interest rate ranged from 1% to 2% p.a. with maturity profile of 2-3 years. This facility has been
fully paid during the year.

e. Finance lease
The Group leases certain equipment under finance leases. The lease term is around 2-5 years. The Group’s obligation under
finance leases are secured by hypothecation of such equipment. '

Interest rates underlying all obligations under finance leases are fixed at respective contract dates ranging from 1.44% to
15.68% per annum. i
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(Rs in lakh)

Total minimum lease payments outstanding

As at March 31,2019

As at March 31,2018

Within one year 1,641.40 894.35
Later than one year and not later than five years 3,263.86 1,234.72
Total 4,905.26 2,129.07

Future interest on outstanding

As at March 31,2019

As at March 31,2018

Within one year 237.78 154.51
Later than one year and not later than five years 281.08 132.11
Total 518.86 286.62

Present value of minimum lease payments

As at March 31,2019

As at March 31,2018

Within one year 1,403.62 739.84

Later than one year and not later than five years 2,982.78 1,102.61

Total 4,386.40 1,842.45
14. Other Financial liabilities (Non current)

(Rs in Iakh)

As at March 31,2019 | As at March 31,2018
Non convertible redeemable preference shares (Refer note 34) 130.81 -
Total 130.81 -

15. Other Financial liabilities (Current)

(Rs in lakh)

As at March 31,2019

As at March 31,2018

Current maturities of long term borrowings

Term loans (secured)

from banks 3.490.84 3,238.22
(Refer note (13.a), (13.b) & (13.¢))
Finance lease obligations 1,403.62 739.84
(Reier note (13.e))
Foreign currency loans - buyers credit - 28.78
(Refer note (13.d))

4.,894.46 4,006.84
Deferred consideration for acquisition of subsidiaries and
business - 1,174.27
Non convertible redeemable preference shares (Reler note 34) 146.57 -
Accrued salaries and benefits 1.472.74 1,290.14
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 348.28 149.50
Capital Creditors 348.55 262.91
Interest payable to group companies (Refer note 31) 508.73 -
Others - 1,588.16
Total 7,719.33 8,471.82

There are no amounts due for payment to the Investor Education and Protection Fund under Section 125 of the
Companies Act, 2013 as at March 31, 2019 (March 31, 2018: Nil)
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16. Provisions

(Rs in lakh)

As at March 31,2019 | As at March 31,2018
Non-current
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity (refer note 28) 391.79 356.62
Provision for compensated absences 71.98 68.72
Total 463.77 425.34
Current
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity (refer note 28) 21.79 7.98
Provision for comipensated absences 8.44 9.07
Total 30.23 17.05

The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives contracts for which any provision was

required for any material foreseeable losses.

17.  Other liabilities

(Rs in lakh)

As at March 31,2019 | As at March 31,2018

Non-Current

Deposit received from customers 224.96 68.33
Deferred rent 190.82 279.98
Total 415.78 348.31
Current

Depoesit received from customers 20.04 186.67
Deferred revenue 861.16 14.66
Deferred rent 75.98 71.05
Advance from customers - 108.07
Other payables 869.32 434.62
Total 1,826.50 815.07

Other payables include statutory tax liabilities, goods and service tax and employer & employee contribution to

provident fund and other funds liability.

18. Borrowings (Current)

(Rs in lakh)

As at March 31,2019 | As at March 31,2018

From Banks/ Others (Secured)

Cash credit/ overdraR (Refer note a & b below) 2,854.20 4,403.99

From Others (Unsecured)

Loan from related parties 14,125.35 6.000.00

(Reter note (¢) below and 31)

Total 16,979.55 10,403.99
a.  [lc Company has availed a cash credit and invoice discounting facility from banks. These facilities are secured

by first and exclusive charge on all existing and future current assets and all existing and future movable fixed assets
except financed through equipment loan/lease pari-passu with term loans, The above facilities are further secured by
corporate guarantee issued by holding company and personal guarantee of promoters. Refer note 13.a for securities
details of facilities outstanding as at March 31, 2019, The rate of interest for cash credit / overdraft is based on 6

months MCLR + 2.65% with a reset on half-yearly basis. As at March 31,

Rs. 2,136.81 lakh) was included in cash credit / overdraft.

2019 Rs. 2,854.20 lakh (March 31, 2018
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19.

20.

21,

b.  During the previous year, Prime Focus Technologies UK Limited (PFT UK), a subsidiary had availed working
capital facility of Rs. 2,267.18 lakh (GBP 2.5 million). The said working capital facility was secured by lien of stock
and receivables, first and exclusive charge on all existing and future current assets and existing and movable fixed
asset (except for leasehold assets/equipment, stock and receivables of PFT UK), second mortgage charge on property
owned by the Holding company at Goregaon, personal guardntees of the Holding company’s promotor, corporate
guarantee of the Holding company, the Company, DNEG North America Inc. and 1800 Vine Street LLC. Interest rate
for this facility is 5% p.a. over 3 months GBP LIBOR with quarterly re-sets. Entire facility has been paid during the
year. As at March 31, 2019 Rs. Nil (March 31, 2018 Rs. 2,267.18) included in cash credit / overdraft.

c.  Interest rate on loan from related party ranges trom 3% p.a. to 15% p.a.

Revenue from operations

{Rs in lakh)

Year ended Year ended
March 31,2019 March 31,2018
[ncome from services 29,061.63 34,649.95
Total 29,061.63 34,649.95
Other income
(Rs in lakh)
Year ended Year ended
March 31,2019 March 31,2018
[nlerest income:
bank deposits 3.54 114.98
on income lax refunds 121.47 56.34
on loans/depusits to related parties (Refer note 31) 900.00 14.82
on others 48.80 48.60
Net gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 39.83 B
Miscellaneous income 36.22 9.08
Total 1,149.86 243.82
Employee benefits expense
(Rs in lakh)
Year ended Year ended
March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Salarics and wages 12,691.72 12,957.12
Contribution to provident fund and other funds 676.30 712.93
Gratuity (Refer note 28) 131.47 129.73
Staff welfare expenses 262.15 301.25
Total 13,761.64 14,101.03
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22. Other expenditure

(Rs in lakh)

Year ended Year ended
March 31,2019 March 31,2018

Rent 2,905.60 2,687.19
Communication cost 768.25 847.81
Consumable stores 129.38 166.41
Electricity expense 756.11 698.08
Ieoal and Professional [ees (refer note below) 830.06 800.85
Rates and taxes 102.22 197.95
Traveling and conveyance 771.92 905.50
Repairs and maintenance 824.02 666.58
Director's sitting fees 4.60 4.00
Insurance cost 73.69 $8.78
House keeping expense 258.20 229.92
Sales promotion experises 671.79 693.78
Provision for doubtful debts 119.79 57.43
Management fees 37.87 66.83
Miscetlaneous expenses* 363.86 377.10

| Total 8,623.36 8,488.21
Note:

Payment to auditors (exclusive of service tax/goods and services tax) (Rs in lakh)
Audit fees 38.40 39.34
In other matlers 4 s
Total 38.40 39.34

*Mliscellaneous expense includes office expenses, storage, membership & subscription

and clearing charge, etc.

23. Finance cost

and security charges, freight

(Rs in lakh

Year ended Year ended
March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Interest on term loan (including finance lease) 3,036.11 1.635.27
Interest on working capital loans 403.90 477.13
Interest on buyer's credil 0.59 8.18
Intevest and premitim on optionally convertible debentures - 842.15
Interest on others 2,023.33 326.08
Finance charges 32.62 130.01
Change in fair value of financial liabilities 30.90 (457.96)
Total 5,527.45 2,960.86
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24, Income tax

A. Amounts recognisedin profit or loss

(Rs in lakh)

Year ended March Year ended
31,2019 March 31,2018
Current tax
- in respect of current year 10.90 217.93
- i respect of prior years - 255.22
10.90 473.15
Deferred tax
- in respect of current year (1,050.79) (1.090.07)
- in respect of prior years - (255.22)
(1,050.79) (1,345.29)
Total income tax expense recognised in the current year (1,039.89) (872.14)
B. Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income
(Rs in lakh)
Year ended March Year ended
31,2019 March 31,2018
Re-measurement of defined benefit obligation 4.72) (3.61)
Tax recognised in other comprehensive income 4.72) (3.61)
C. The income tax expenses lor the year can be reconciled to the accountiug profit as follows:
(Rs in lakh)
March 31,2019 March 31,2018
- Y% of PBT Amount % of PBT Amount
(Loss profic before tax (8,041.75) 65758
Tax using Company: s domestic tax rale 29.12% (2,341.76) 34 94% 229.78
Effect of:
Non-deductible expenses 31308 394
Dctll‘crlc.d taxrecognised by the Companry at 34.944% considering expected (17522)
utilisation period
Eflect of consolidation elimination 188.06 (46.49)
Effect of lower taxrates (Allernative Minimum Tax) in other jurisdiction(s) 5648 (186.49)
Eﬂ'ecf\ofnon recognition ofdcferred ta)l(assct on Lm.used taxlosses and 91947 (872.88)
taxoffsets related to the larcign subsidiary companies
Income tax expenses recognisedin Statement of profit andloss (1,039.89) (872.14)
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D. Deferred tax balances

The following is the analysis of deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) presented in the consolidated balance sheet:
(Rs in lakh;

Recognise Re .
Balance as at Miach Remgfnﬁrwd i . Rt.cogni?ed it Balance as arMarch f i Profit] rlixfo()gn(;se palanceas
11,2017 Prafit’ loss during {OCl during 11,2018 loss i at March
' 2017-18 201718 e during "OlS-gIQ 31.2019
2018.19 |~
Deferred tax liabliries related to: _
Diererce between wntien down values of
property, plant & squpment and uranzible ) 5 . p N .
.1::(5 as )-verboo\:ofpxcomu andln:_otne (1 A7.80 e (10,853.30) A (132 Bel8)
tanzct 961
% ease depose discounine 2nd equalisaton (199 141 _ (70.88) 11.52 £39.36)
11.302.79) 363.71 (10,939.08) 37756 (10,561.52
Deferred tax assets relared to:
Provision for gratety, campensated absences 130,61 - 181,46 ) )
and bors M4 (3.61) 26.3 (3.7 203.11
Unabsorbed loss camed forward 70.28 71857 78865 61135 140000
|F =t —alue of RS 134 (1 44\ - -
Uppon vaiue of Optonally cony erable 6331
debennres [((CD 16351} . .
Piovssion for deubtful debits 2111 .25 4240 3758 998
MAT credit ennttemnent o - 235,22 135.2 PEDHY
T on share debarmure 15U expenses $.26 201 62 207) . 118
| 296.01 981.58 (3.61) 1,273,498 67323 (472)] 194249
Net deferiyed (ax (liablites) 11,006.78) 134520 {1.61) (9.665.10)| 1.050.79 {(472)] (5.619.03)

The Group has carried forward losses in United Kingdom and Urited States against which deferred tax asset has not been
recognised are as follows;

Particulars As At Will expire in As At Will expire in
March 31, 2019 FY March 31,2018 FY
Unabsorbed 3,322.02 | 2038-39 - -
business loss
Unabsorbed 1,737.66 | Indefinite 689.48 | Indefinite
business loss
25. Segment information

Operating segments:

2. The segment information has been prepared in line with the review of operating results by the Chief Operating
Decision Maker (CODM) of Group, Ramakrishnan Sankaranarayanan (Director).

b. The Group is presently operating as an integrated post-production setup, providing technological digital solutions to its

customers, which has been considered as representing a single operating segment.

Geographical information

The Group operates in four principal geographical areas — India (Country of Donmicile), United Kingdom, United States
of America and other countries.

The Group’s revenue from continuing operations from external ctstomers by location of customers and information
about its non-current assets by location of assets are detailed below:
(Rs in lalkh)

| Sale of services Scgment Non-current assets*

Year ended March | Year ended March As at March 31, |[As at March 31,
31,2019 31,2018 2019 2018
India 18.890.36 18,860.47 43,148.60 44,237.85
United Kingdom 637.90 1,927.00 2,618.50 2.282.74
Unitecl States of America 7.598.38 10,991.97 15,026.28 13,121.41
¢ Countries 1,934.99 2.870.51 - = :
29,061.63 34,649.95 60,793.38 59,642.00 |

vent assets exclude financial assets,
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Single customer contribute individually to more than 10% of the group’s total revenue for the year ended March 31, 2019
amounting to Rs.8,955.72 lakh (previous year- single customer Rs. 8,851.92 lakh)

26.

Earnings per share

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit / (lols's)”for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent
by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit / (loss)attributable to equity holders of the parent by the
weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity
shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.

Potential ordinary shares are anti-dilutive when their conversion to ordinary shares would increase earnings per share
from continuing operations.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations

Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31,2019 | March 31,2018
Net (Loss Yprolit after tax as per statement of profit and loss
(A) Rupees in lakh (7,001.86) 1,529.72
Weighted average number of equity shares for Basic EPS (B) _ |Number 21,71,578 21,71,578
Shares deemcd to be issued lor no consideration in respect of:

-Employee stock options Number - 51,984
Weighted average number of equity shares for Diluted EPS (C) Number 21,71,578 22,23,562
Basic earnings per share (A/B) Rupees (322.43) 70.44
Diluted earnings per share (A/C)* Rupees (322.43) 68.80

*Potential equity shares which are of anti-dilutive nature have been excluded in computation of diluted earnings

per share.
27. Statement of net assets, net profit / loss after tax and other comprehensive income attributable to owners
(s in lnkh)
— Net Assets Share ln Profit/ {lusy) Share in Other comprehiensive Share in Totnd Comprehensive
Sr No Name of entity as % of consol as Vs of as % of consol as % of consol
net nssets Amount cunsol Amount profit/ loss Amount profit/ loss Amount
profit/ loss .
1|Prime Tocus Techuologies Limited 9% 28.414,98 28% (1,957 83) 1% 878 34% (1.949 05)
2l Mime Focus Technologies UK Limited 1% 427,62 +20% (1,387 41) - 24% (1,38741)
3| Pre Voeus Technologies, Inc 9% (2,483 21) 39% (4,152.65) 73% (4.152 65)
4] Prime Post Burope Limited 1% 160.96 -6% 406 36 ~1% 40636
i|[DAXPFTLLC = 26% 728922, -0% 79327 -14% 79327
4|DAXCloud ULC - 1% (2103) 1% (56.03) 1% (56.03)
| 7| Prine Focus MEAL FZ LLC % 2.103 66 -30% 2,11697 -37% 211697
3| Apptons hobiity Soltons Pvt Lid 0% 3187 0% (3.22) - % (322)
125% 35,724.07 61% (4,240.54) 1% 8.78 74% {4.231.76)
Addi(Leas: Bffects of Inter Company
pudjua taents | elinanationg -25% | (7,15958) 39% (2,761 32) 99% 1,298 43 26% (1.462 89)
- - 100% | 28.,564.49 100% | (7,001.86) 100% 130721 100% (5.694.65)
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28. Employee Benefits
a Defined contribution plans

The total amount recognised in profit or loss is Rs. 676.30 lakh (March 31, 2018 Rs. 712.93 lakh), which is included in
Note 21 as ‘Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds’.

b. Defined benefit plans (Unfunded)

The Group sponsors defined benefit plan (gratuity plan) for qualiv'fying employees. The defined benefit plan is unfunded
and is administered by the Group directly and is non-funded, Under the plans, the employee are entitled to a lump-sum
payment upon retirement from the services of the Group. An employee becomes eligible to receive payment upon
completion of 5 years of service at the rate of 15 days of service for each completed year of service.

This plan typically expose the Group to actuarial risks such as; interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk.

Interest risk A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability.
Longevity risk | The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the

best estimate of the mortality of the plan participants both during and after their

employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan
liability.

Salary risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future
salaries of plan participants. As such an increase in the salary of the plan patticipants will
increase the plan’s liability.

No other post-retirement benefits are provided to the employees,

In respect of the gratuity plan, the most recent actuarial valuation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation
was carried out by an external expert, who’s a duly registered actuary. The present value of the defined benefit obligation
and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method,

The Group contribtites towards social security and Medicare. Liability in respect thereof is determined on the basis of
contribution as required under the US State / Federal Rules.

The Group has saving and investment plan u/s. 401(k) of internal Revenue Code of USA. Contributions are charged to
the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which these accrue.
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I. Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of defined benefit obligation:

(RS in lakh)

As at March 31,2019 | As at March 31,2018
Defined Benefit Obligation at the beginnmg of the yea 364.60 290.38
lnterest Cost 28,62 22.39
Current Service Cost 102.85 10734
Benetit I'aid Directly by the Employer (68.99) (45.17)
Actuarial (GainsY/Losses on Obligations-Due to change in demographic
assumplions - (30.27)
Actuarial (Gains Y/Losses on Obligations-Due to change in financial
agsumptions B 477 (7.33)
Actuarial (Gains V.osses on Obligations - Due to Experience (18.27) 2726
Defined Benefit Qbligation at the end of the year 413.58 364.60

IL lixpeuses recognised in Statement of profif andloss during the year

(Rs in lakh

Year ended March 31,

Year ended March 31,

2019 2018
Current Service Cost 102.85 107.34
Net Iuterest Cost 28.62 2239
Expenses Recognized 131.47 129,73

HL Expenses Recognizedin the Other Comprehensive fncome (OCl

(Rs in lakh)

Year ended March 31,
2019

Year ended March 31,
2018

Actuarial gains on oblipation for the year

(13.30)

(10.34)

Nel income For the year recognized in OCT

(13.54)

(10.34)

Actuarial assuwinplions

Year ended March 31,

Year ended March 34,

2019 2018
|Rate pf Discounting (perannuny) 7.79% 7.85%
Rate of Salury Increase (per annumj 5.00% 5.00%

Rate of Empioyee Turnaver (per dnnuim)

For service 4 years and
below 10.00% p.a. For
service 5 years and
above 2.00% p.a.

For service 4 years and
below 10.00% pa. For
service 5 years and
above 2.00% p.a

Mortality Rate During Emploviment

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2000-08)

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2006-08)

I The discount sate is based on the prevailing market yields of'the Government of India bonds as at the Balance Sheet date for the

estunated termof the obligations

2 The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, take into account nflation, seniority, promotion
and other relevant factors including supply and demand in the employment mnarket. The above information is certiticd by the

actuary.

. Sensitivivy analysis of the defined benefit ubligations

Reasonubly possible changes at the reporting date
afiected the detined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:

to one of the relevant acluanai assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have

(s in lutch)

March 31,2019

Murch 31,2018

F Decrease in . . Decreasein
Incrense in gssamplion . Increuse in assuniption .
assumption assumption
| Disconnt rul‘t: (1% lll‘l‘\'unh‘.nl} = (49.48) 60,27 {46.97) 57.09
Futire salany appregition (1% nevement) 6078 (51.35) 57.82 (48.54)
Artation pate (1% mevenwing 14,50 (1718 1334 (16,08}
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29. Financial instruments

A. Capital Management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital is to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce
the cost of capital.

The Group management sets the amounts of capital required in proportion to risk. The Group manages its capital structure
and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and risk characteristics of the underlying assets.

The capital structure of the Group consists of borrowings (as detailed in note 13, 15 and 18), offset by cash and bank
balances (note 8), and equity of the Group (comprising Equity shas= capital and other equity). The debt equity ratio is 1.62
as on March 31, 2019 (0.97 as on March 31, 2018).

During the year, the Group’s strategy was to monitor and manage the use of funds whilst developing business strategies
and marketing.

Also refer note 33 to this financial statements.
B. Financial risk management

A wide range of risks may affect the Group’s business and financial results. Amongst other risks that could have
significant influence on the Company are market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Board of Directors manage and review the affairs of the Group by setting up short term and long-term budgets by
monitoring the same and taking suitable actions to minimise potential adverse effects on its operational and financial
performance.

(CH Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a’client or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet 1ts
contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group’s receivables from clients and cash. Management has a credit
policy in place and the exposure 10 credit risk is monitored on an on-going basis.

The Group has a low credit risk in respect of its trade receivables, its principal customers being national broadeasters and
major organisations which the Group has worked with for a number of years. However, as the Group grows its customer
base and works with more independent producers it will experience an increased credit risk environment. The Group is
also exposed to credit risk in respect of its cash and seeks to minimise this risk by holding funds on deposit with banks.

‘The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk
was Rs. 26,488.49 lakh as at March 31, 2019 and Rs. 22,675.29 lakh as at March 31, 2018 being the total of, trade
receivables, unbilied revenue and other financial assets.

‘Two customers contribute individually to more than 10% of outstanding trade reccivables as at March 31,2019 amounting
1o Rs.3,707.33 lakh (P.Y .- Two customers- Rs. 2,924.87 lakh) and Three customers contribute individually to more than
10% of unbilled revenue as that date amounting to Rs. 1,005.97 lakh (P.Y. — two customners- Rs. 3,805.20 lakh).

b. Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its payment obligations associated with its financial liabilities
when they fall due. Ultimate responsibility tor liquidity risk management rests with the Management, which has
developed a liquidity management forecasting process which aius to ensure that the Group has sufficient cash at all times
to meet liabilities as they fal! due.

larking capital requirements are generally provided from operational cash flow or through the Group’s Borrowings.

ing analysis sets out the maturities of financial assets and liabilities, including amounts maturing more than
twclvc\m hs. For liability maturities more than 12 months, see atso note 14 and 15, ’
S AR A | ’
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(Rs in lakh)

As at March 31, 2019

Less than 1 year

More than 1 year

Financial liablities

Borrowings 21,874.01 24,472.66
Other financial liabilities 2,824.87 130.81
Trade payables 2,761.71 -

Total 27,460.59 24,603.47

As’ at Mare

h31,2018

Less than 1 year ,

More than 1 year

Financial liablities

Borrowins 14,410.83 18,254.73
Other financial liabilities 4,464.98 -
Trade payables 2,297.35 -
Total 21,173.16. 18,254.73
LE. Market risk

The primary market risks to which the Group is exposed are foreign currency and interest rate risk.
Foreign carrency risk management

Considering the countries and economic environment in which the Group operates, its operations are subject to risks arising
from fluctuations in exchange rates in those countries. The risks primarily relate to fluctuations in US Dollar, Euro, Great
Britain Pound, Australian Dollar, Singapore Dollar and Canadian dollar against the respective functional currencies of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

The following analysis has been worked out based on the net foreign currency exposures as of the date of Balance sheet
which could affect the statement of profit and loss and equity.

The following table sets forth information relating to foreign currency exposure:

Particulars Foreign currency As atll\/lﬂ,r_ch 31,2019 As at March 31,2018

| Denomination Foreign currency Rs. In lakh Foreign currency Rs. In lakh

Financial assets USD 2,07,04,853 14,352.81 1,44,15,619 9,344.64
GBP 6,931 6.26 74,471 67.62
SGD 1,508 0.77 3,308 1.03
AUD 3,52,359 173.36 81,54,141 405.69
EUR 82,475 | | 64.13 1,59,710 127.55
CAD 2,33,216 3 121.07 93,284 46.86
AED . - 42,098 7.43

Total 14,718.40 10,001.42

Financial Liabilities USD 7,12,231 493.73 3,38,997 219.75
(GBP 69,408 62.66 69,408 63.03
SGD 6,688 3.42 31,702 15.65
EUR 35,560 27.65 68,467 54.68
CAD 5,83,691 303.00 2,10,395 105.69
INR 67,749 0.68 9,23,000 9.23

Total 891.14 468.03

Net exposure 13,827.26 9,533.39

5% appreciation/ depreciation of respective foreign currencies with respect to functional currency of the Group would result
in decrease/ increase in the Group’s profit before tax by approximately Rs. 691.36 lakh for the year ended March 31, 2019
(March 31, 2018: Rs. 476.67 lakh). This sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items, L) e VECA N
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Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed Lo interest rate risk because the group borrows
risk s managed by the group by maintaining an
analysis for exposure (o interest rates on borrowings as
increase in floating interest rates at the reporting date would have
[37.10 lakh for March 31, 2019 and Rs. 126.45 lacs for March 31,
-ates at the reporting date would have increased equity and profit by the same

F. Fair value measurements

Accounting classifications and fair values

The following table shows the fair values of financial assets and financi

appropriate mix between fixed and floating rat
at the end of the reporting peviod indicates that a 50 basis point
decreased equity and profit for the year/ period by Rs.
2018 and a 50 basis point decrease in floating intevest
amount respectively.

funds at both fixed and floating interest rates. The
¢ borrowings. The sensitivity

al liabilities, including their levels in fair value

hierarchy.
Rs, in lukh
Carrying Vajue Fair Value
Particulars A at March 31, | As at March 31, | As at March 31, | As at March 31,|  Fair value
2019 2018 2019 2018 hicrarchy
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Finaneial assets measured at amortised cost
Trade reeeivables 13,525.42 B314.04 - -
Cush apd cash equivalenis | 838,77 213.62 - -
Other bulanees with Banks 56 45 930.58 - -
Otlier livancial ussets 12.963.07 14,361.25 - -
b = 28,383.71 23,819.49 - 5
FINANC AL LIABLITIES
Finuneinl liablities measured at fuir value L
Non convetlible iedeemable preference shares
(NURI'S) 27138 277.38 - |Level3
| Finaneial LinMities niensured st nuortised cost -
Bormowings 40, 346,67 32,665 56 g —
Othet financial liablities 267830 4,464.98 - .
Trade payubles 206171 2,297.35 - -
52,064,006 39,427.89 - -
—a) T
Fair value as at | Rs. in lakh
i ]. Valuation Significant Relationships of
(linancial Assets) As at March 31, | As at March 31, |Fair Value techniques and unobservable unobservable
Minancial Liabilities 2019 2018 Hirevachy key inputs inputs __ |inputs to fair value
i The higher the
Discounted cash Digegunt rate and expec.ted retums:
flow method was| the higher the fair
probable cash ! )
wsed to capture value. The Highe
flow .
present value the discount rate,
NCRPS 277 38 - Leval 3 lower the fair value
b 277.38 i T '
Recouciliation of level 3 fair values
Rs. in@
Closing balance as at March 31, 2017 (Finuncial Liabilitics) 45796
Witk to Market chauges in cmbedded
detivative Opuiomilly ganvertible Debentures (457.90)
(Closing bulanee as at Alarch 31, 2018 (Financial Linbilities) -
lNL'Ri’S issued diing the yeat 26.48
[Change G value o NCRES 30.90
Lﬁ'hmlng Intlice hs at Mareh 31,2014 (Financial Linbilities) m M
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30, Share based payments

The Company has granted employee stock options under employee’s stock options scheme. Each option entitles the
holder to one equity share of Rs. 10 each. 1,91,606 options were outstanding as at March 31, 2019 (Previous year
1,90,970). 34,000 (Previous year 47,091) options were granted during the year. Such options entitle the holders to one
equity share of Rs. 10/~ for each option granted with vesting period of 1 to 4 years, exercise period of 5 years and exercise
price of Rs. 3,987/-. From options granted, 57,058 were vested during the year (Previous year 79,954)

The current status of the stock options granted to the Employees is as under:

Particulars | March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Numbers | Weighted | Numbers | Weighted
of options average of options average

exercise exercise
price price

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,90,970 2,679 2,03,019 2,415

Granted during the year 34,000 3,987 47,091 3,996

Lapsed/ forfeited during the year 10.620 2,960 59,140 2,823

Exercised during the year - - - -

Expired during the year 22,744 662 - -

Outstanding at the end of the year 1,91,6006 3,132 1,90,970 2,679

Exercisable at the end of the year 1,09,899 2,567 1,13,165 2,043

For stock options outstanding as at March 31,2019 the range of exercise price is Rs. 263 to Rs. 4,478 and weighted
average remaining contractual life is 5.07 years and vesting period of 1 to 4 years

Weighted average fair value of options granted during the year is Rs. 1,095.7
Following are details with regard to determination of the fair value of stock options:
Option Pricing Model used — Black-Scholes-Merton formula

Weighted average fair value of share —Rs. 3,236.10/- per shanzﬁe

Expected volatility — 27.2% - 28.7% a

Option life — 6 - 10 years

Expected dividends — 0% yield

Risk-free interest rate — 7.2% — 7.5% p.a.

During the year, Company recorded an additional amount of Rs. 257.72 lakh on account of the extension of the exercise
period for outstanding options under ESOP Scheme 2012 from 3 years to S years, The said extension was approved by
the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on September 28, 2018. The Company has followed
the fair value method to account for the grant of stock options and charge for the year ended March 31,2019 is Rs. 459.88
lakh (March 31, 2018: Rs. 215.29 lakh).
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31. Related party transactions

(i) List of parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year
A) Ultimate Holding Company (Control exists)
Prime Focus Limited

B) Fellow Subsidiaries

Reliance Lowry Digital Imaging Services, Inc

Prime Focus World NV

DNEGNorth America Inc. (Formerly known as Prime Focus Notth Anrica Inc.)
Double Negative India Private Limited \

DNEG Creative Services Private Limited (Formerly known as Prime Focus World Creative Services Private
Limited)

Gener8 [ndia Media Services Limited

PF Digital Media Services Pvt Lid.

Prime Focus International Services UK Limited

Prime Focus Creative Services Canada Inc.

De-Fi Media Limited

Prime Focus 3D Cooperatief U.A.

Prime Focus Luxembourg SARL

PF Overseas Ltd

PF World Ltd

C) Key Management Personnel

Mr. Ganesh V. Sankaran Whole Time Director upto August 14,2018
Ramakrishnan Sankaranarayanan Whole Time Director

Raghunath Mohanrao Chief Operating Officer

Vikas Rathee Chief Financial Officer upto September 14, 2018
Sanket Limbachiya Company Secretary

D) Key Management Personnel of Ultimate Holding Company '
Mr. Naresh Malhotra
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ii) Key Management Personnel*

Rs. in lakh
Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2019 | March 31,2018
Remuneration
Ganesh V. Sankaran 5.51 11.77
Ramakrishnan Sankaranarayanan* 210.00 94.00
Raghunath Mohanrao 83.86 83.28
Sanket Limbachiya 8.93 3.48
*Includes impact of increments and re-location to foreign subsidiary
Rs. in lakh
As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2019 2018
Balance Outstanding at the year end— Remuneration Payable
Ganesh V. Sankaran - 0.82
Ramakrishnan Sankaranarayanan 4.04 -
Raghunath Mohanrao 6.42 4.12
Sanket Limbachiya 0.77 0.68
iii)  Ultimate Holding Company (UHC)
Rs. in lakh
Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2019 | March 31,2018
Revenue 0.83 0.54
Technical Service charges - 49.13
Interest expense 1,086.60 136.14
Interest income 900.00 -
Loan taken 6,061.48 10,689.43
Loan repaid 4.887.53 4,689.43
Reimbursement of expenses (net) 188.22 107.56
Security deposit given - 6,000.00
Guarantees issued during the year 13.625.31 2,724.20
Rs. in lakh
As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2019 2018
Balance outstanding at the year end
Trade / other Payable 16.98 110.70
Security deposit recievable 6.000.00 6,000.00
Loan payable 7,173.95 6,000.00
Interest payable 79.01 -
Financial / performance gaurantee 36,525.31 25,624.00
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iv) Fellow Subsidiary companies

Rs. in lakh
Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2019 | March 31,2018
Revenue
Double Negative India Private Limited 0.55 E
PF Digital Media Services Pvt Ltd. 0.07 -
Technical services
Prime Focus International Services UK Limited - 140.91
Reimbursement of expenses (net)
DNEG North America Inc. 1.08 351.49
Prime Focus International Services UK Limited 62.23 8.60
Double Negative India Private Limited 13.13 10.87
DNEG Creative Services Private Limited 28.23 26.22
Interest on loans (net)
Gener8 India Media Services Limited 394.27 106.71
PF Digitul Media Services Pvt Ltd, 133.79 -
Prime Focus International Services UK Limited 40.98 -
DNEGNorth America Inc. 2143 -
Loans Given
Gener® India Media Services Limited - 6,343.14
Repayment of loans given
Gener$ India Media Services Limited - 6,343.14
Loan taken
Gener8 India Media Services Limited 15,876.44 8,498.75
DNIEG North Ameriea Inc. 337.71 3,817.45
Prime Focus World NV - 1,667.78
Repayment of loans talken
Genei8 India Media Services Limited 10,358.69 8,498.75
DNEG North America Inc, - 4,166.86
Prime Focus World NV - 1,738.61
Advances Given/ Received (net)
Prime Focus International Services UK Limited 1,797.23 389.85
Reliance Lowry Digital Imaging Services, Inc. 403.52 2,071.13
Prime Focus World NV - 42.70
Repayment of advances given
Prime Focus International Services UK Limited - 435.00
Prime Focus World NV - 42,70
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Rs. in lakh

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

2019 2018
Balance outstanding at the year end
Trade / other payable
Gener8 India Media Services Limited 96.45 90.19
DNEG North America Inc. 1.07 75.86
Prime Focus International Services (UK) Limited 589.80 247.99
Prime Focus Creative Services Canada Inc. - 38.88
De-Fi Media Limited - 0.97
Trade / other recievable
PI" Digital Media Services Pvt Lid. 0.08
Interest payable -
PF Digital Media Services Pvt Lid. 368.00 -
DNEGNotth America Inc. 21.30 -
Prime Focus International Services (UK) Limited 40.42 -
Loan payable
PT Digital Media Services Pvt Ltd. 5,517.75 -
DNIEG North America Inc. 416.70 -
Prime Focus International Services (UIK) Limited 1.016.95 -
Loaus and advances
DNEG Creative Services Private Limited 2.36 -
De-Fi Media Limited 1,186.91 -
Double Negative India Private Limited 2.49 -
Prime Focus World NV, 13.30 71.31
De-Fi Media Limited 1.14 -
Prime Focus 3D Cooperatief U.A. 11.56 11.63
Prime Focus Luxembourg SARL 5.02 5.05
PF Overseas Ltd 1.70 1.71
Pl World 1td 2.56 2.58
Reliance Lowry Digital Imaging Services, [nc. 3,140.76 2,571.31
Key Management Personnel of Ultimate Holding Company
Rs. in lakh
Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2019 | March 31,2018
Personal guarantee given by Naresh Malhotra 43,387.59 31,790.55

* The figures of Key management personnel do not include provisions for gratuity / other employee benefit

as separate actuarial valuation not available.

Under ESOP Scheme, NIL options were granted to Key management personnel in current year (previous year-

NIL).

The stock options outstanding for KMP’s as at March 31, 2019 is 26,400 and as at March 31, 2018 is 28,000
" and employee stock option expense for the year March 31, 2019 is Rs. 86.39 lakh (previous year Rs. 40.21

lﬂkh):

e

Note: All contracts / arrangements with related parties are at arms-length
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Operating lease arrangement

The Group has taken certain assets (premises and furniture and fixtures) on cancellable operating lease basis. The tenure
of the lease ranges from 11 to 127 months. Amount of lease rental charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in respect
of cancellable operating leases is Rs. 1,592.33 lakh (Previous year: Rs. 1,338.11 lakh).

Amount of lease rentals charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in respect of non-cancellable operating leases is Rs.
1,313.27 lakh (Previous Year: Rs. 1,349.08 lakh).

The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease are under:
Rs. in lakh

l As at March 31,2019 | As at March 31, 2018
| Lease Payments due within one year 1,314.58 | 1,336.35
Lease Payments due later than one year and not later than five 3,052.26 4,366.84
 Jears _
Lease Payments due later than five years - :
Total 4,366.84 5,703.19

33. The Group has incurred loss of Rs.7,001.86 Lakh during the year ended March 31, 2019 and, as of that date, the group

34.

35.

curtent liabilities exceeded its current assets by Rs. 4,905.28 lakh. These events or conditions indicate that a material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. The Group has
positive cash flow projections based on its annual business operations plan, based on existing projects & projects pipeline
and also cost reduction measures undertaken by the Group. Further, Prime Focus Ltd, the holding company, has also
provided a financial support letter to the Company to provide support in settlement of its liabilities in the next year, if
required. On the basis of annual cash flow projections and the financial support letter provided by the holding company,
the financial statements of (he Group have been prepared on a going concern basis.

On September 30. 2018, Company acquired 100% shares of Apptarix Mobility Solution Private Limited, an OTT
technology product innovator. The business acquisition wus conducted by entering into a share purchase agreement for
cash consideration of Rs. 125.00 lakh and contingent corsideration of up to Rs. 375.00 lakh in the form of Non-
convertible redeemable preference shares (NCRPS). The fair value of contingent consideration on the date of acquisition
is Rs. 246.49 lakh. Total fair value of consideration is Rs. 371.49 lakh. The value of NCRPS as on March 31, 2019 was
Rs. 277.38 lakh.

‘The Company obtained a purchase price allocation on report from an external valuer & the following assets and liabilities
were recognized in this financial statements: ,

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition are as follows:

Particulars Rs. in lakh
[ntangible assets 336.41
Property. plant and equipment 0.48
Net current assets 34.60
Total 371.49

Contingent liabilities & commitments

f.  Capital Commitments:

(Rs in lakh)

Particulars As at March 31 2019 |As at March 31 2018
i |Estimated amount of contracts renmaining to be
lexecuted on capital account and not provided for:

45.29 77.98
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Capitalisation of expenditure

During the year, the Group has capitalised the following expenses of revenue nature to the cost of intangible asset under
development (software). Consequently, expenses disclosed under the respective notes are net of amounts capitalised by
the Group.

Rs. in lakh

Particulars March 31,2019 |March 31,2018
Opening Balance 3,229.84 14.98
Add:
Employee Benefit expenses 2,980.80 3,016.54
Direct overheads 193.51 191.32
Exchange difference 67.09 7.00

3,241.40 3,229.84
Less: Capitalised 3,950.65 -
Closing Balance 2,520.59 3,229.84

37. Events after the reporting period

There were no events after the reporting period which require adjustments in amounts recognised/disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.

38. Approval of Consolidated Financial Statements
The consolidated financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on May 29, 2019.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

54 /’
£ —J W /~/‘ ,

</ I krish //
makris hnan ishant Fadia

Sankpranarayanan

Director Director
DIN :- 02696897 DIN :- 02648177
Sa&tmya ;
Company Secretary 1S/

Place: Mumbai R -/

Date: May 29,2019




